
 

Page 1 of 4 

  City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2022 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
7:30 P.M. 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS  

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 
 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 

• August 1, 2022, Regular Meeting 
• September 7, 2022, Regular Meeting  
• September 19, 2022, Informal Meeting 
• September 19, 2022, Regular Meeting 

 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR  
 
 ORDERS 
 

10865 – An Order Appropriating $27,000.00 from Free Cash to the IT Department – 
Cyber Security Software Account. (Finance Committee) 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
10866 – A Measure Declaring Surplus for the Purpose of Disposal of Land and 

Buildings at 73 Stuart Street. (Finance Committee) 
 
 

 



 

Page 2 of 4 

10867 – A Measure Authorizing an Intermunicipal Agreement between City of 
Gardner and Town of Ashby for Veterans Services. (Finance Committee) 

 
10871 – A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the Certification of FY2023 Tax 

Rate. 
 
IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.  
  
 10868 – Applications for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class I. (Safety Committee) 
 

(a) Salvadore Chevrolet, 442 West Broadway   
(b) Salvadore Chrysler-Dodge-Jeep-Ram, 442 West Broadway 

 
10869 – Applications for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class II (Safety 

Committee) 
  

(a) AC Auto Clinic, 411 Parker Street 
(b) Blake Motors, 412 Main Street 
(c) Brian’s Auto Sales, 549 W Broadway 
(d) Gardner Automart, Inc., 182 West Street 
(e) Gardner Motors, LLC, 119 Pearson Blvd 
(f) JPJ Automotive, LLC, 78 East Broadway 
(g) Mike’s Auto, 251 E Broadway 
(h) Osagi Enterprise, LLC., 43 Tobey Street 
(i) Ric’s Radiator Repair Used Car Sales, 800 W Broadway 
(j) Salvadore Chevrolet, 421 W Broadway 
(k) Salvadore Chevrolet, 249 Timpany Blvd. 
(l) Sylvester R. Anghuy Sales, 146 Sherman Street 
(m) Rob’s Dyno Services, LLC, 268 Coleman Street 
(n) J. Wood Inc., 361 West Street 
(o) T.J. & Sons Auto Sales, 537 W Broadway 

 
10870 – Applications for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class III, Osagi 

Enterprise, LLC., Used Auto Parts Sales, 43 Tobey Street. (Safety 
Committee) 

 
10872 – A Measure Confirming the Council Presidents Appointment of Jennifer 

Zlotnik Pelavin, Esq., to the position of Special Act Charter Drafting 
Committee Member, for term expiring upon submission to City Council. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
10873 – A Measure Confirming the Council Presidents Appointment of Alan L. 

Agnelli, to the position of Special Act Charter Drafting Committee Member, 
for term expiring upon submission to City Council. (Appointments 
Committee) 

 
10874 – Notification from City Clerk of Ward 3 Councillor Vacancy. 



 

Page 3 of 4 

 
X.    REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES   
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

10855 – An Order Appropriating $10,000.00 Free Cash to City Clerk’s Temporary 
Staffing Account. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 
12/5/2022) 

 
10860 – An Order Authorizing $107.96 Payment of Prior Year for Airport Department 

Operating Expenditure. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance 
Committee 12/5/2022) 

 
10863 – An Order Transferring $36,500.00 from Veterans Department, Veterans 

Benefit Operating Expenditures to Clerk/Assistant Salaries and Wages 
Expenditures. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 
12/5/2022) 

 
10856 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, 

Section 68, Entitled “Personnel Compensation Schedule,” – Related to 
FY2023 Supplemental Budget. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance 
Committee 12/5/2022) 

 
10864 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, 

Entitled “Personnel Compensation Schedule,” – Assistant Director of 
Veterans Services. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 
12/5/2022) 

 
 APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 

10858 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Anthony Whitman, to 
the Position of Local Inspector, for term expiring November 25, 2025. (In the 
City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 12/5/2022) 

 
 SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 

10857 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 428, 
Entitled “Hawkers and Peddlers.” (In the City Council and Referred to Safety 
Committee 12/5/2022) 

 
10861 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic,” Section 42, Entitled “One Way Street.” (In 
the City Council and Referred to Safety Committee 12/5/2022) 

 
 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 4 

XI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
  
XII. NEW BUSINESS  
 
XIII. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion n to the extent permitted by law. 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall, 

on Monday evening, August 1, 2022. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Council President Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Ten (10) Councillors were present 

including Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, and 

George Tyros. Councillor James Walsh was absent. 
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 

 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording 

and Public Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an 

open session of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to 

reasonable requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of 

equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending 

to make such recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or 

referenced at the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of 

the meeting minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 

 

READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

There were no meeting minutes present. 

 

APPOINTMENTS 

#10767 

President Kazinskas announced that she would like to take item #10767 out of order and 

consider it at this time. 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Interim Police Chief Philip Kearns spoke in favor of this appointment. This was something 

they have been looking forward to. The police department was fortunate to receive a grant to 

acquire Rocky. Rocky was admitted to the Boston Police Canine Academy where he did 14 

weeks of training. On his first day of his job, he was able to track down and charge 4 people 

who broke into an apartment. He was names after former Deputy Police Chief Rock 

Barrieau. His family were also present for this appointment. 

 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack. It 

was  voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, 

Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 

Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to confirm the following appointment: 

 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Rocky to the position of Police 

K-9, as Member of the Gardner Police K-9 Unit, for a permanent term. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

#10740 

President Kazinskas opened the Public Hearing on a petition of NATIONAL GRID and 

VERIZON NEW ENGLAND, INC. for permission to locate poles wire and fixtures, including 

the necessary sustaining and protecting fixtures along and across the following public way: 

 

A Petition by National Grid and Verizon New England, Inc., Keyes Road – To relocate 1 

Jointly Owned Pole on Keyes Road beginning at a point approximately 700 feet southeast of 

the centerline of the intersection of West Street. Relocate Pole #2 across the street to 

accommodate for bridge construction and upgrade to a 45 foot class 2. 

 

The President called for persons wishing to testify in favor of the Petition. 

 

Will Fontaine of National Grid spoke in favor of the Petition. He stated that there is a new 

bridge being built and they need clearances for the crane to install parts of the infrastructure 

there. Clearance is needed for the overhead wires, so they are moving them across the street. 

 

The President again called for persons wishing to testify in favor of the Petition. 

 

There being none, the President thrice called for persons wishing to testify in opposition. 

 

There being none, President Kazinskas closed the Hearing at 7:46 PM. 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

ORDERS 

 

#10742 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted on call of the roll, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas 

and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Adopt the 

following Order: 

 

AN ORDER TRANSFERRING APPROPRIATIONS FROM MAINTENANCE CREW 

SALARY AND WAGES TO VEHICLE FUEL EXPENSES 

 

 ORDERED: That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Twenty-Nine 

Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($29,000.00) from Maintenance Crew Salary and 

Wages to Vehicle Fuel Expenses. 

 

#10743 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted on call of the roll, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas 

and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Adopt the 

following Order: 

 
AN ORDER TRANSFERRING APPROPRIATIONS FROM MAINTENANCE CREW 

SALARY AND WAGES TO ENERGY AND UTILITIES EXPENSES 

 

ORDERED: That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Three Thousand Six 

Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($3,600.00) from Maintenance Crew Salary and Wages to 

Energy and Utilities Expenses. 

 

#10744 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted on call of the roll, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas 

and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Adopt the 

following Order: 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

AN ORDER TRANSFERRING APPROPRIATIONS FROM MAINTENANCE CREW 

SALARY AND WAGES TO STREET LIGHTING EXPENSES 

 

ORDERED: That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Seven Thousand Dollars 

and No Cents ($7,000.00) from Maintenance Crew Salary and Wages to Street Lighting 

Expenses. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

#10745 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to authorize the 

acceptance of these donations: 

 

 ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS 

 FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 VOTED: That the City of Gardner is authorized to accept certain donations and 

gifts for use by the Fire Department, said acceptance in accordance with the 

provisions of Chapter 44, Section 53A ½ of the General Laws. 

 

#10746 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to authorize the 

acceptance of these donations: 

 
 ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS 

 SENIOR CENTER 

 

 VOTED: That the City of Gardner is authorized to accept certain donations and 

gifts for use by the Senior Center, said acceptance in accordance with the 

provisions of Chapter 44, Section 53A ½ of the General Laws. 

 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10747 

Councillor Dernalowicz informed the Council that on the June 6th meeting, the Council 

declared this parcel as surplus. Upon further review, the City Assessor determined that the 

lot is not buildable, therefore the price of the property was reduced.  

 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Grant the 

following Order: 

 

 DECLARING SURPLUS FOR PURPOSE OF DISPOSAL OF 

  LAND AND BUILDINGS AT CONANT STREET 

 

VOTED: To declare surplus for the purpose of disposal, in accordance with 

prevailing General Laws, all land and buildings at Conant Street, further identified on 

the City of Gardner Assessor’s Map  as R17-2-14, to establish as a minimum amount of 

$15,000 to be paid for any conveyance of said property, and to authorize the Mayor to 

convey said land, or part thereof, for such amount or larger amount, and upon such 

other terms as the Mayor shall consider proper in accordance with this Vote. 

 

#10748 

Councillor Dernalowicz informed the Council that this property has not paid real estate taxes 

since 1991. The property has been in land court since 1996. It is the longest land court in the 

history of Massachusetts. The City will be taking over the property by eminent domain to 

due to the significant amount of back taxes owed. The goal is to improve the area and get it 

back on the tax rolls. The Finance Committee were in favor of passing the order at the 

reduced price. 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Grant 

 the following Order: 

 
 

 
  



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
#10749 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to place on file A 
Notification from the Mayor Regarding “The VOTES Act” Chapter 92 of the Acts of 2022 
Impact on Gardner. 
 
#10750 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to place on file A 
Notification from the Mayor Regarding Fleet Status Update of the Gardner Fire Department. 
 

 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 8 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10751 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to place on file A 
Notification from the Mayor Regarding Receipt of Medicaid Reimbursement Payment. 
 
#10752 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to place on file 

A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the Transfer Station Revenue Trends. 
 
#10753 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to place on file A 
Notification from the Mayor Regarding FY2021 Free Cash Review. 
 

#10754 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Dana 

Heath, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 

Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 

Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to authorize the acceptance of 

these donations: 

 

 ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS 

 GARDNER CENTENNIAL CELEBRATION DONATIONS 

 

 VOTED: That the City of Gardner is authorized to accept certain donations and 

gifts for use by the City of Gardner, said acceptance in accordance with the provisions 

of Chapter 44, Section 53A ½ of the General Laws. 

 

#10755 

On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Nathan 

Boudreau, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 9 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to place on file A 
Notification from the Mayor Regarding Air Quality Improvement at the Gardner Fire 
Department Headquarters. 
 
#10756 

On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Nathan 

Boudreau, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to place on file A 
Notification from the Mayor Regarding Station 1 Repair and Remediation Work. 
 

#10757 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to place on file A 
Ruling from the Attorney General relative to an Open Meeting Law Complaint. 
 
#10760 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros, to Grant the Order 

for A Measure Confirming the Police Officer Assignments to Polling Locations. 
 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

WORCESTER COUNTY                                      CITY OF 

GARDNER 

 

 I assign the following Police Officers as election poll detail, as designated, and I hereby certify that in my 

opinion they are persons specially fitted by education, training and experience to perform the duties of said office 

and that I make the appointments solely in the interest of the City. 

 

 I approve a sufficient number of police officers, as listed, at the polling location to preserve order and to 

protect the election officers and supervisors from any interference with their duties and to aid in enforcing the laws 

relating to elections, as required by Section 72 of MGL Chapter 54 which was changed in section 13 of Chapter 92 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 10 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

of the Acts of 2022. Further, move to designate the Police Chief the authority to assign specific police officers 

according to scheduling and availability. 

 

   

        _________________________________ 

        Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor 

 

Confirmed by City Council ________________ 

 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Titi Siriphan, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Early voting @ City Hall-8/27/22 
 
SPAIN---------------------------------------------------------------------------City Hall Auditorium/0900-1700 
 
Primary Polling Assignments-9/6/22 
 
LAWRENCE---------------------------------------------------------------------------------WITH CITY CLERK/0430 
NEUFELL--------------------------------------------------------------------------------WARD 1/ELK’S/0700-1500 
SIAW------------------------------------------------------------------------------------WARD 1/ELK’S/1500-2000 
GUERREIRO------------------------------------------------------------------------WARD 2/LIBRARY/0700-1500 
DORVAL-----------------------------------------------------------------------------WARD 2/LIBRARY/1500-2000 
LAWRENCE---------------------------------------------------WARD 3/CITY HALL AUDITORIUM/0700-2000 
SGT. ST. PIERRE-------------------------------------------------WARD 4/POLICE DEPARTMENT/0700-1500 
SPAIN--------------------------------------------------------------WARD 4/POLICE DEPARTMENT/1500-2000 
DET. STARZYNSKI---------------------------------------------------------------------WARD5/PACC/0700-2000 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

#10758 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 

Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 

Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to refer the following appointment to the 

Appointments Committee for further study and report: 

 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Lorin Walter to the position of 

permanent Police Sergeant. 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 11 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

#10758 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 

Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Confirm the Mayor’s Appointments 

of Election Officers for 2022-2023: 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

WORCESTER COUNTY            CITY OF 

GARDNER 

 

 I appoint the following as temporary Election Officers and I hereby certify that in my 

opinion they are persons specially fitted by education, training and experience to perform 

the duties of said office and that I make the appointments solely in the interest of the City. 

       

 _________________________________ 

        Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor 

 

 

for terms expiring August 31, 2023 

 

                                                                        ________________________ 

        Titi Siriphan, City Clerk 

 

 

1A Warden Permanent Norman H. Beauregard 147 Oak Street Gardner

1A Clerk Permanent Roland D. Mailloux, Jr. 20 Teaberry Lane Gardner

1A Inspector Permanent Doris Buefort 238R West Street Gardner

1A Inspector Permanent Jacqueline M. Kraskouskas 222 Bickford Hill Road Gardner

1A Inspector Permanent Erana E. Landry 298 Park Street Gardner

1A Inspector Permanent Diane M. Meany 58 Jean Street Gardner

1A Inspector Permanent Ann K. Twohig 315 Union Street Gardner



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 12 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

1B Warden Permanent Lynn M. Roux 203 Betty Spring Road Gardner

1B Clerk Permanent Joanne B. Rogers 82 Narrows Road Westminster

1B Inspector Permanent Gloria   Bourgeois 47 Racette Avenue Gardner

1B Inspector Permanent Bridget A. Koetsch 32 Talcott Avenue Gardner

1B Inspector Permanent Walter Scott 103 Bayberry Drive Gardner

1B Inspector Permanent Valerie D. Spar 20 Plymouth Street Gardner

1B Inspector Permanent Marjorie J. Whittemore 47 Lake Street, A606 Gardner

2A Warden Permanent Clifton J. Melatti 37 Rosewood Drive Gardner MA

2A Clerk Permanent David L. Hendren 55 Bickford Hill Road Gardner MA

2A Inspector Permanent Alice P. Anderson 34 Chapman Park Gardner MA

2A Inspector Permanent Carol A. Cormier 47 Lake Street, A207 Gardner MA

2A Inspector Permanent Robert J. Cormier 47 Lake Street, A207 Gardner MA

2A Inspector Permanent Cathy T. Leger 134 Greenwood Place Gardner MA

2A Inspector Permanent Annette M. Melanson 178 Waterford Street Gardner MA

2B Warden Permanent Kevin M. Ares 60 Ridgewood Lane, Apt.18 Gardner MA

2B Clerk Permanent Nancy M. Girouard 110 Marquette Street Gardner MA

2B Inspector Permanent Val J. Cormier 166 Acadia Road Gardner MA

2B Inspector Permanent Marcia J. White 92 Ryan Street Gardner MA

2B Inspector Permanent Elaine M. Leger 47 Lake Street, A201 Gardner MA

2B Inspector Permanent G. Ronald Leger 47 Lake Street, A201 Gardner MA

2B Inspector Permanent Theresa H. Hillman 155 Champagne Road Gardner MA

3A Warden Permanent Robert J. Swartz 53 Racette Avenue Gardner MA

3A Clerk Permanent Howard A. Leadbetter 100 Ross Street Fitchburg MA

3A Inspector Permanent Rachel I. Blais 25 Way Street Gardner MA

3A Inspector Permanent Anita M. Boudreau 8 Jackson Park Gardner MA

3A Inspector Permanent Marcel Martin 17 Bayberry Drive Gardner MA

3A Inspector Permanent Robert L. Owens 217 Riverside Road Gardner MA

3A Inspector Temporary Mark St. Laurent 153 Colony Road Fitchburg MA

3B Warden Permanent Thomas H. Patterson 132 Pinewood Drive Gardner MA

3B Clerk Permanent Paulette A. Burns 185 Benwood Drive Athol MA

3B Inspector Permanent Gayle M. Jaillet 35 Wickman Drive Gardner MA

3B Inspector Permanent Odette R. Racette 44 Jean Street Gardner MA

3B Inspector Permanent Dorothy M. Ronn 145 Prospect Street Gardner MA

3B Inspector Permanent Monica J. Williams 19 City Hall Ave Gardner MA

3B Inspector Permanent Loyall C. Allen 169 Sunrise Lane Gardner MA



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 13 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 
 

#10761 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 

Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to refer A Measure Confirming the 
Mayor’s Appointment of Nancy Binder to the position of Bandstand Committee Member, for 
term expiring July 25, 2025, to the Appointments Committee for further study and report. 

 

 

 

4A Warden Permanent Ronald J. Roy 51 Pinewood Drive Gardner MA

4A Clerk Permanent Kathleen O'Brien 190 Leamy Street Gardner MA

4A Inspector Permanent Judith A. King 32 Jay Street Gardner MA

4A Inspector Permanent Gloria M. Landry 458 Pearl Street Gardner MA

4A Inspector Permanent Danielle L. Rice 409 Pleasant Street Gardner MA

4A Inspector Permanent Ann E. Johnson 176 Main Street Westminster MA

4A Inspector Permanent Joanne Augustino 15 Chatham Street Gardner MA

4B Warden Permanent Dianne M. LeBlanc 209 Elm Street Gardner MA

4B Clerk Permanent Jaime Lubelczyk 63 South Main Street, #2F Gardner MA

4B Inspector Permanent Doris L. Forte 47 Lake Street, A602 Gardner MA

4B Inspector Permanent Susan Greninger 194 Central Street, #315 Gardner MA

4B Inspector Permanent Jill M. Cormier 35 Water Street Gardner MA 

4B Inspector Permanent Donald A. LeBlanc 209 Elm Street Gardner MA

4B Inspector Permanent Nancy E. Parker 47 Wachusett Road Gardner MA

5A Warden Permanent Paul A. Spano 33 Adams Street Gardner MA 

5A Clerk Permanent Mary L. Glotch 47 Montvale Road Gardner MA

5A Inspector Permanent Judith T. Collette 47 Kendall Street Gardner MA

5A Inspector Permanent Gloria M. O'Malley 80 Kendall Pond Road West Gardner MA

5A Inspector Permanent Constance I. Pelletier 81 Airport Road Gardner MA

5A Inspector Permanent Roberta J. Lesperance 35 Wachusett Road Gardner MA

5A Inspector Permanent Marcia A. Stone 185 Bridge Street Gardner MA 

5B Warden Permanent Leonette M. Roy 49 Temple Street Gardner MA

5B Clerk Permanent Barbara A. Yablonski 195 Sherman Street Gardner MA

5B Inspector Permanent Trine Aschim 141 Parker Hill Road Gardner MA

5B Inspector Permanent William Edwards 4 Sunrise Lane Gardner MA

5B Inspector Temporary Susan H. Lariviere 95 Bayberry Drive Gardner MA

5B Inspector Permanent Mary Ann Suchocki 154 Sand Street Gardner MA

5B Inspector Permanent Edward S. Yablonski 195 Sherman Street Gardner MA



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 14 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10762 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 

Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to refer A Measure Confirming the 
Mayor’s Appointment of Edward Vipond to the position of Bandstand Committee Member, 
for term expiring July 25, 2025, to the Appointments Committee for further study and 

report. 

 

#10763 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 

Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to refer A Measure Confirming the 
Mayor’s Appointment of Donna Russo to the position of Bandstand Committee Member, for 
term expiring July 25, 2025, to the Appointments Committee for further study and report. 

 

#10764 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 

Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to refer A Measure Confirming the 
Mayor’s Appointment of Anne Hurst to the position of Disability Commission Member, for 
term expiring July 25, 2025, to the Appointments Committee for further study and report. 

 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 

 

#10759 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, 

it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 

Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Adopt A Measure Relative to the 
September 6, 2022, State Primary. 
 

 Commonwealth of Massachusetts  
 

CITY OF GARDNER 

STATE PRIMARY ORDER 

SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 15 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

  

That meetings of the citizens of this City qualified to vote in the State Primaries shall be 

held on TUESDAY, THE SIXTH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022, FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 8:00 

P.M. for the purpose of casting their votes in the State Primaries for the candidates of political 

parties for the following offices: 

 

  

 GOVERNOR……………………………………………...FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR…..………………………...FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 ATTORNEY GENERAL.………………………………...FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 SECRETARY OF STATE ...……………………………...FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 TREASURER AND RECEIVER GENERAL..…………...FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 AUDITOR…….…………………………………………...FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS………………………………..…..THIRD DISTRICT 

 COUNCILLOR…………………………………………………..……SEVENTH DISTRICT 

 SENATOR IN GENERAL COURT………..…..WORCESTER & MIDDLESEX DISTRICT 

 REPRESENTATIVE IN GENERAL COURT…..…….SECOND WORCESTER DISTRICT 

 DISTRICT ATTORNEY…………………………..……………………MIDDLE DISTRICT 

 SHERIFF………………………………………..…….……………WORCESTER COUNTY 

  

  
 

 It is further ordered that the following polling places are designated by the City Council: 

 
 

  WARD 1, PRECINCT A – Elk’s Home, 31 Park Street 

  WARD 1, PRECINCT B – Elk’s Home, 31 Park Street 

  WARD 2, PRECINCT A – Levi Heywood Memorial Library, 55 West Lynde Street 

  WARD 2, PRECINCT B – Levi Heywood Memorial Library, 55 West Lynde Street 

  WARD 3, PRECINCT A – City Hall, Perry Auditorium, 95 Pleasant Street  

  WARD 3, PRECINCT B – City Hall, Perry Auditorium, 95 Pleasant Street 

  WARD 4, PRECINCT A – Police Headquarters, 200 Main Street 

  WARD 4, PRECINCT B – Police Headquarters, 200 Main Street 

  WARD 5, PRECINCT A – Polish American Club, 171 Kendall Pond Road W 

  WARD 5, PRECINCT B – Polish American Club, 171 Kendall Pond Road W 

 

 

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 
TITI SIRIPHAN 

City Clerk 

#10765 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

     

VOTED: 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 16 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Accept and Place 

on File An Open Meeting Law Complaint filed by Gregory Deehan. 
 
#10766 

On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor James Boone, it 

was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 

Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Accept and Place on File An Open 
Meeting Law Complaint filed by Gregory Deehan. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE 

 

#10735 

Councillor George Tyros informed the Council that Officer Walter was not able to attend the 

previous Appointment Committee. The Committee was granted More Time on A Measure 
Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Lorin Walter to the position of permanent Police 
Sergeant. 
 
#10736 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 

Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Confirm the Mayor’s appointment of: 

 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Paulette Burns to the position of 

Board of Assessors Member, for term expiring July 1, 2025 

 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

#10737 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to send the 

following Ordinance to First Printing: 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 17 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, SECTION 

44 OF CHAPTER 171, ENTITLED “COMPENSATION IN LIEU OF PAID HOLIDAYS” 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER THAT: 

 

SECTION 1: Section 44 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 

“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays,” be amended by deleting subsection A. 

 

SECTION 2: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 

“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be amended by deleting the 

word “Captain” from the provisions of this section. 

 

SECTION 3: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 

“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be amended by deleting the 

word “Lieutenant” from the provisions of this section. 

 

SECTION 4: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 

“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be amended by deleting the 

words “and all regular firefighters” from the provisions of this section. 

  

SECTION 5: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as required by 

law. 

 

#10741 

Councillor Ronald Cormier nominated Jennifer A. Dymek for the position of City Treasurer 

effective August 19, 2022. 

 

Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz seconded the nomination. 

 

There being no further nominations, President Kazinskas entertained a motion to close the 

nominations. 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce to close the nomination. 

 

On call of the roll: 

 

 Councillor James Boone voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 18 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 Councillor Nathan Boudreau voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 

 Councillor Craig Cormier voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 

 Councillor Ronald Cormier voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 

 Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 

 Councillor Karen Hardern voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 

 Councillor Dana Heath voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 

 Councillor Judy Mack voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 

 Councillor George Tyros voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 

 President Elizabeth Kazinskas voting for JENNIFER A. DYMEK 

 

Having received ten (10) votes for, Jennifer A. Dymek was declared and elected City 

Treasurer effective August 19, 2022, for term expiring August 19, 2025. 

 

#10768 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Nathan 

Boudreau, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to Remove from 

the Calendar An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, Section 
68, Entitled “Compensation Schedule, Attachment A: Mayor, Attachment B: City Council, 
and Attachment D: School Committee.” (Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack) and present it 

in January 2023. 

 
REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMITTEE 

 

#10740 

Councillor George Tyros requested More Time on A Petition by National Grid and Verizon 
New England, Inc., Keyes Road – To install beginning at a point approximately 700 feet 
southeast of the centerline of the intersection of West Street. Relocate Pole #2 across the 
street to accommodate for bridge construction and upgrade to a 45 foot class 2. The 

Committee had more questions regarding the Petition. There being no objections, More time 

was Granted. 
  

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz would like if National Grid to attend their Public Service 

Committee Meetings. 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 19 of 19 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Councillor Nathan Boudreau would like to thank the City Clerk’s office and staff for all the 

work they do for the election and early voting. 

 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas would like to mention that the next City Council meeting will 

be held on a Wednesday instead of Tuesday because of the State Primary Election. She would 

also like to congratulate Councillor James Walsh and his wife on their 40th anniversary. 

Lastly, she would like to inform the public that tomorrow is National Night Out and it will 

be held at the Gardner High School 

 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was 

voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, 

Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 

Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to adjourn at 8:30 p.m. 
 

 

Accepted by the City Council:  



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall, 

on Wednesday evening, September 7, 2022. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Council President Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Eleven (11) Councillors were present 

including Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, 

George Tyros, and James Walsh. 
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 

 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording 

and Public Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an 

open session of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to 

reasonable requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of 

equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending 

to make such recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or 

referenced at the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of 

the meeting minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 

 

READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

There were no meeting minutes present. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

#10769 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to CONFIRM the Mayor’s 

Appointment: 

  

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Eric McAvene to the 

position of Gardner Police Chief, for term expiring September 7, 2025. 

 

#10735 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to CONFIRM the Mayor’s 

Appointment: 

 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Lorin Walter to the position 

of permanent Police Sergeant. 

 

#10770 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to refer A Measure 
Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Frances LeMieux to the position of Cultural Council 
Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025, to the Appointments Committee for further 

study and report. 

 

#10771 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to refer A Measure 
Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Paulette Burns to the position of Cultural Council 
Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025, to the Appointments Committee for further 

study and report. 

 

#10772 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to A Measure Confirming 
the Mayor’s Appointment of Kristina Singer to the position of Cultural Council Member, for 
term expiring August 30, 2025, to the Appointments Committee for further study and report. 

 

#10773 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to A Measure Confirming 
the Mayor’s Appointment of Kathleen Deal to the position of Cultural Council Member, for 
term expiring August 30, 2025, to the Appointments Committee for further study and report. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

#10774 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

Authorize the Acceptance of Donations: 

 

 ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS 

 POLICE K-9 DEPARTMENT 

 

 VOTED: That the City of Gardner is authorized to accept certain donations and 

gifts for use by the Police K-9 Department, said acceptance in accordance with the 

provisions of Chapter 44, Section 53A ½ of the General Laws. 

 

#10775 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

Authorize the Acceptance of Donations: 

 
 ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 GARDNER ANIMAL CONTROL SHELTER DONATIONS 

 

 VOTED: That the City of Gardner is authorized to accept certain donations and 

gifts for use by the Gardner Animal Control Shelter, said acceptance in accordance 

with the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 53A ½ of the General Laws. 

 

#10776 

Councillor Judy Mack would like to thank the family of U.S. Army veteran Michael Strong, 

who passed away recently, for their donation to help assist other veterans. 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

Authorize the following Measure to Create a Veterans Services Gift Account: 

 
 ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS 

GARDNER VETERAN SERVICES 

 

VOTED: That the City of Gardner is authorized to accept certain donations and gifts 

for use by the Gardner Veteran Services, said acceptance in accordance with the 

provisions of Chapter 44, Section 53A ½ of the General Laws 
 

#10777 

Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz informed the Council that the property has been vacant 

for over 2 years since Gardner Academy moved out to Helen Mae Sauter. There is no need 

for this municipal building. The sale would place the property on the tax rolls and generate 

more income for the city. The building is over 125 years old and in need for many updates. 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas 

and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

Authorize the following Measure: 

 

DECLARING SURPLUS FOR PURPOSE OF DISPOSAL OF 

LAND AND BUILDINGS AT 75 E BROADWAY 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

VOTED: To declare surplus for the purpose of disposal, in accordance with 

prevailing General Laws, all land and buildings at 75 E Broadway, further 

identified on the City of Gardner Assessor’s Map  as R12/4/44, to establish as a 

minimum amount of $100,000 to be paid for any conveyance of said property, 

and to authorize the Mayor to convey said land, or part thereof, for such 

amount or larger amount, and upon such other terms as the Mayor shall 

consider proper in accordance with this Vote. 
 

#10778 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth 

Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James 

Walsh to Authorize the following Measure: 

 

  DECLARING SURPLUS FOR PURPOSE OF DISPOSAL OF 

   LAND AND BUILDINGS AT 53 SCHOOL STREET 

 

VOTED: To declare surplus for the purpose of disposal, in accordance 

with prevailing General Laws, all land and buildings at 53 School Street, 

further identified on the City of Gardner Assessor’s Map  as R27/22/12A, to 

establish as a minimum amount of $1 to be paid for any conveyance of said 

property, and to authorize the Mayor to convey said land, or part thereof, for 

such amount or larger amount, and upon such other terms as the Mayor shall 

consider proper in accordance with this Vote. 

 

#10779 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

refer A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the Fire Department Operations Audit, to the 

Committee of the Whole. 
  

#10780 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

place on file A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the City Centennial Celebration Ad 
Hoc Advisory Committee. 

 

#10781 

On a motion made by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor James Boone, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to refer An Act Relative to 
Establish a Special Act Charter Drafting Committee, to the Committee of the Whole 

 
#10782 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

refer A Measure Authorizing an Increase in Allowable Funding Limit for Council on Aging 
Revolving Fund, to the Finance Committee for further study and report. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

ORDERS 

 

#10783 

Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz informed the Council that this was a bill received by the 

IT Department from Xfinity Comcast for services provided in June after the fiscal year had 

closed. This requires a 9/10th vote of the City Council. 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth 

Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James 

Walsh to Adopt the following Order: 

 

 AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF PRIOR YEAR OPERATING EXPENDITURE 

 

ORDERED: To authorize payment of prior year IT Operating Expense account 

for prior year, as follows: 

 

 FY2022 PRINTER/COPIER EXPENSE  $32.01 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 

 

#10784 

On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 

it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

refer An Application by Gardner Ten Pins, Inc., located at 560 W Broadway, for a Bowling 
Alley License, to the Public Safety Committee for further study and report. 

 

#10785 

On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 

it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

refer An Application by Gardner Thrift Store, for a License to deal in Second-hand Articles 
at 280 Central Street, to the Public Safety Committee for further study and report. 

 
#10786 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 

James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 

Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to place on file, A 
Ruling from the Attorney General relative to an Open Meeting Law Complaint – OML 2022 
– #145. 
 

#10787 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 

James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 

Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to place on file A 
Ruling from the Attorney General relative to an Open Meeting Law Complaint – OML 2022 
– #146. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE 

 
 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 8 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10761 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to Confirm the Mayor’s 

appointment of: 

 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Nancy Binder to the position of 

Bandstand Committee Member, for term expiring July 25, 2025 

 

#10762 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to Confirm the Mayor’s 

appointment of: 

 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Edward Vipond to the position 

of Bandstand Committee Member, for term expiring July 25, 2025 

 

#10763 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to Confirm the Mayor’s 

appointment of: 

 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Donna Russo to the position of 

Bandstand Committee Member, for term expiring July 25, 2025 

 

#10764 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to Confirm the Mayor’s 

appointment of: 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 9 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Anne Hurst to the position of 

Disability Commission Member, for term expiring July 25, 2025 

 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMITTEE 

 

#10740 

Councillor James Walsh requested More Time on A Petition by National Grid and Verizon 
New England, Inc., Keyes Road – To install beginning at a point approximately 700 feet 
southeast of the centerline of the intersection of West Street. Relocate Pole #2 across the 
street to accommodate for bridge construction and upgrade to a 45 foot class 2. The 

Committee found some discrepancies and are working with Tighe & Bond. There being no 

objections, more time was Granted. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 

 

#10737 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Nathan Boudreau, James Boone, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and George Tyros to send the 

following Ordinance to Approve and send to Final Printing: 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, SECTION 

44 OF CHAPTER 171, ENTITLED “COMPENSATION IN LIEU OF PAID HOLIDAYS” 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER THAT: 

 

SECTION 1: Section 44 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 

“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays,” be amended by deleting subsection A. 

 

SECTION 2: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 

“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be amended by deleting the 

word “Captain” from the provisions of this section. 

 

SECTION 3: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 

“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be amended by deleting the 

word “Lieutenant” from the provisions of this section. 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 10 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

SECTION 4: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 

“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be amended by deleting the 

words “and all regular firefighters” from the provisions of this section. 

  

SECTION 5: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as required by 

law. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Councillor George Tyros would like to thank all the city officials who were involved with 

the Pleasant Street and downtown attractions. 

 

Councillor Judy Mack would like to welcome back all the students for the school year and 

happy to see the new school completed. 

 

Councillors James Boone and Nathan Boudreau would like to that the City Clerk’s office and 

all the Election Officers for running the election. 

 

Councillor James Walsh said that they had a tour at the water and sewer facility. Members 

should also take a tour and see how we get water. 

 

Councillor Ronald Cormier mention that we should be fortunate to have running water. 

Unfortunately, in the news lately, Jackson Mississippi has no water. 

 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to adjourn at 8:22 p.m. 
 

 

Accepted by the City Council:  



 

INFORMAL MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Informal Meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall, 

on Monday evening, September 19, 2022. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Council President Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 6:30 o’clock p.m.  

 

ATTENDANCE 

 

Councillors present were President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillor Ronald Cormier, 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh. 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier and George Tyros were absent 

 

Mayor Michael Nicholson, Retired Fire Chief John Parow, and Fire Chief Greg Lagoy were 

also present. 

 

Mr. John Parow of John Parow Consulting & Associates presented the following PowerPoint 

Presentation: 
 

 

The Informal Meeting concluded at 7:25 p.m. 

 

Accepted by the City Council:   
 



City of Gardner Fire 
Department Study

Conducted By:
John Parow Consulting & Associates

32 School Street
Chelmsford, MA. 01863

978.490.4736
John_Parow@comcast.net

Parowconsulting.com 
July 2022

mailto:John_Parow@comcast.net


Scope of Work

•Emergency Medical System Review

•Overview of Facility Needs

•Civil Service - Pros and Cons 

•Review Current Staffing Model



Methodology

• Conducted multiple site visits to become familiar with operations of 
the Gardner Fire Department and the Community 

• Requested supporting information from the Fire Department and City 
Hall

• Gathered statistical department data to determine current and 
trending activity

• Gathered statistical data from comparison departments

• Reviewed and Compare National Fire and Emergency Medical 
Services Best Practices



Emergency Medical System Review

The Edward Collins Center Study 2015
• One Gardner Fire Department BLS ambulance would transport an 

estimated 75% of all emergency medical patients;

• Additional staffing at fires and emergency situations (“more boots 
on the ground”);

• Additional funding to offset costs of maintaining a busy fire 
department;

• Additional services to residents, property owners and businesses 
with no increase in taxes.



Emergency Medical System Review

GFD transport 75% of all emergency medical patients 

Total 

Transports

Trans 

GFD

Trans 

Wood's

4840 3,692 1,148

Percent 76% 24%



Emergency Medical System Review

Additional staffing (“more boots on the ground”)
• Average Transports per day is 6
• Average time tied up on a transport is 1 hour and 10 

minutes
• Time tied up on transports per day is 7 hours

• Time available to respond to other emergency calls per day      
is 17 hours



Emergency Medical System Review

Additional funding to offset costs
• Collections/Expenses 

Calls Transports Collections Collection/Expense Net Income

FY/18 2278 1509 572574 54375 518199

FY/19 2961 2187 871137 203764 667372

FY/20 2751 2112 1004272 308789 695483

FY/21 2715 2091 1184798 306901 877897

FY/22 2858 2164 1265787 289029 976758



Emergency Medical System Review

Additional funding to offset costs
• Total expenses versus revenues 

Collections Medicare CPE Budget cost Revenue +/-

FY/18 572,574 814,588 -242,014 ** new Amb

FY/19 871,137 742,685 128,452

FY/20 1,004,272 903,223 101,049

FY/21 974,772 210,026 940,699 244,099

FY/22 1,031,391 234,407 907,892 357,906



Emergency Medical System Review

Ambulance Replacement

• Frontline 5 years

• Reserve 5 years

GDF Ambulance 5/yr Capital Replacement Plan

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Primary Ambulance Replace Replace

Rescue 3 2018 New Rescue 2 New Rescue 3

Reserve Ambulance Re assign Re assign

Rescue 2 2007 Rescue 3 to Reserve Rescue 2 to Reserve



Emergency Medical System Review

Additional services to residents, property owners and 
businesses with no increase in taxes
• Addition of two firefighters per day to respond to emergency calls 

throughout the city

• Dual role firefighter/EMT available an average of 17 hours per day to 
respond to these “other” emergencies

• Approximately a 25% increase in response capabilities to these 
“other” emergencies at no additional cost to the city

• Additionally, a positive revenue source for the city and provides 
revenues to offset other fire department costs



Emergency Medical System Review
Recommendations:
1. Stay with the hybrid system of having GFD provide the primary BLS with Wood’s (or 

some private) to provide both back-up and ALS services.

2. GFD should continue to apply for offset revenues, from the Medicare CPE 

Reimbursement Program, on an annual basis.

3. GFD should continue to keep two ambulances available for service, a primary and a 

reserve and follow a five-year replacement plan to assure reliability and reduce 

unnecessary maintenance costs.

4. Budget for the capital expense of a new ambulance every five years. With inflation it is 

assumed a new ambulance in 2028 will cost around $350,000.00. Putting aside 

$70,000.00 from the revenues each year would cover this capital expense in 2028.

5. The ratio of transport, Gardner Fire Department/Wood’s Ambulance should be collected 

on an annual basis and reviewed to ensure this benchmark is being met or exceeded.



Gardner Fire Department Facilities

• Station 1, built in 1935 and located at East Broadway and Prospect 
Street 

• Station 2, built in 1978 located at 70 City Hall Avenue serves as Fire 
Headquarters 

• Annex Building, located next to Fire Headquarters 



Gardner Fire Department Facilities

Ten major areas of interest were pictured in the study
• Roof leak at Headquarters

• Lack of storage space for fire apparatus and trailers

• No consideration for mixed gender use of facilities. 

• There is only 1 bathroom and gang shower facility for both male and 
female

• Sleeping area is a “dorm room” set up

• Lack of adequate lockers/storage/proper ventilation for turnout gear

• There is no dedicated decontamination area for Fire & EMS equipment

• There is an absence of adequate storage space at headquarters

• Apparatus, equipment and gear are stored between 3 buildings



Gardner Fire Department Facilities

• Office space is very limited and does not meet the current needs of the 
department

• Similar to the lack of gender specific bathrooms and showers, separate locker 
rooms, for male and female are needed

• Lack of a training facility 



Gardner Fire Department Facilities

Recommendations: 
1. The city should investigate the needs for a new or substantially 

remodeled Fire Headquarters to meet current and future needs. 



Civil Service

•Civil Service, as a government agency, was designed to 
provide fairness in the public sector, in entry level 
hiring, promotions, (including bypass in rank), 
demotions, (layoffs) and discipline (which includes 
suspensions and terminations)

• In recent years Cities and Towns across the 
Commonwealth have left Civil Service



Civil Service

Pros and Cons to any System

•Pros
• Civil Service testing system is independent of the city or town and 

requires little effort for the community in the process

• Civil Service offer various levels of protection for Union members. 
They view the Civil Service system as providing an even playing 
field which can help to keep local politics and favoritism to a 
minimum

• Cost to Cities and Towns is keep to a minimum



Civil Service

•Cons
• New hire and promotional tests based on statewide questions and 

not unique to the specific community

• Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT) off the civil service “new 
hire” list is exhausted very quickly

• Transfers must be from Civil Service departments limiting the 
hiring of current FF/EMTs

• Hiring under the 2N+1 limits candidates. Limited to hire one from 
the top three



Civil Service

Recommendations:
1. Review the success of the upcoming hiring process to see if it yields 

sufficient qualified firefighter/EMT candidates. If it does not meet these 
needs and it is clear that remaining in the Civil Service system is inhibiting 
the fire department from meeting its mission, leaving Civil Service should 
be explored.

2. Whether the fire department remains in or leaves Civil Service, we would 
recommend that a proactive recruitment program be established to assist 
in providing qualified firefighter/EMT candidates for the Gardner Fire 
Department, into the future.



Current Staffing Model
Successful fire departments share certain principles of organization for 
effective and safe function:
• Chain of command

• Command hierarchy from the lowest to the highest department level, 
ensuring that each subordinate reports to one supervisor

• Supervisory limits or span of control
• Number of individuals or resources that one supervisor can manage 

effectively in emergency and non-emergency situations

• Division of labor
• Responsibilities are assigned and prevents the duplication of efforts

• Discipline and regulations
• Written policies, procedures, and guidelines to set boundaries and 

enforcement for expected individual and departmental performance



Current Staffing Model

We looked at 10 Fire Departments in the Commonwealth 

Population calls 

other

calls 

EMS

total 

calls

# Stations AMB

Agawam 28,613 1104 5254 6358 2 3 ALS

Amesbury 17,532 1106 1844 2950 1 1 BLS

Bridgewater 27,619 2500 3600 6100 2 2/ALS/2 res.
Foxborough 16,700 1300 2900 4200 1 3/ALS

Gardner 20,683 1938 3477 5415 1 1 BLS

Greenfield 17,258 1305 1763 3068 1 BLS/BU

Leominster 41,581 2728 5728 8495 3 2 BLS

Melrose 28,016 1798 2480 4278 3 ALS

Southbridge 16,878 764 3690 4454 1 3 ALS

Wilmington 22,325 2424 2332 4756 1 3 BLS

Winthrop 18,544 1061 2132 3193 2 No AMB



Current Staffing Model

Looking at these Fire Departments we noticed two things 
when comparing with the Gardner Fire Department:

• Lack of a Deputy Fire Chief 

• Standard span of control for a fire department of five or six 
firefighters to one supervisor is exceeded on each Group



Current Staffing Model

Deputy Fire Chief

• Would serve as second in command

• Would manage day-to-day operations, direct and coordinate activities of 
personnel under their command

• May act as a department head in the absence of the Fire Chief and assist in 
succession planning. 

• Would be responsible for both administrative work and time spent in the field

• Would be a non-union position and serve as a confidential employee 

• assist and act in a confidential capacity when formulating, determining, and 
effectuating management policies and dealing with disciplinary issues



Current Staffing Model

Standard Span of Control

• “Group” span of control in the GFD is eight firefighters to one supervisor, 
exceeding the 5 or 6 to one model

• Exceeding the span of control becomes more apparent and potentially dangerous 
during emergency operations

• Maintaining a manageable span of control is particularly important at incidents 
where safety and accountability are a top priority.



Current Staffing Model

• To bring the Span of Control under control we would recommend:

• Creating a Captain’s position on each group (out of the current 9 positions)

• Keeping the current Lieutenant's position

• The Fire Captain would manage the Group and run the day-to-day operations on 
that Group 

• The Fire Lieutenant would act in a supervisory/foreman type position and assist 
the Captain in day-to-day operations and oversee a company/crew at emergency 
scenes

• This would bring the Span of Control to 4 firefighters to 1 supervisor



Current Staffing Model
Recommended Model would look like

Captain

LT 

4 
Firefighters

3 
Firefighters



Current Staffing Model

OSHA 29 CFR 1910.134 law “2in/2out”



Current Staffing Model

• NFPA 1710 addresses the structure and operation at a structure fire 
for career Fire Departments



Current Staffing Model

NFPA 1710 is a Standard for Best Practices 

• GFD should work towards implementing NFPA 1710 in the years to 
come

• Adding personnel

• Automatic aid/mutual aid with other neighboring communities

• Pre-fire plans

• Etc.



Current Staffing Model

Recommendations:

1. The city looks at making a nonunion (confidential) Deputy Fire Chief’s position. 

The Deputy Fire Chief would serve as second in command of the fire department

2. The city looks at creating a Captain’s position on each Group to be the Group 

Commander. This would be within the current Group staffing of nine and in 

addition to the current Group Lieutenant to bring the span of control to 4 

firefighters to 1 supervisor

3. That Gardner Fire Department should work towards meeting the guidelines of 

NFPA 1710, over time



Gardner Fire Department Study



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 8 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall, 

on Monday evening, September 19, 2022. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Council President Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Eight (8) Councillors were present 

including Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, and James Walsh. Three (3) 

Councillors were absent, Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau and George Tyros. 
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 

 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording 

and Public Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an 

open session of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to 

reasonable requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of 

equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending 

to make such recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or 

referenced at the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of 

the meeting minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 

 

READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

There were no meeting minutes present. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

#10788 

On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was 

voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 8 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and 

James Walsh to refer A Measure Confirming the Mayor's Appointment of Chuck LaHaye, to 
the position of Historical Commission Member, for term expiring September 13, 2025, to the 

Appointments Committee for further study and report. 

 

#10789 

On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was 

voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, 

Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and 

James Walsh to refer A Measure Confirming the Mayor's Appointment of Scott Huntoon, to 
the position of Historical Commission Member, for term expiring September 13, 2025, to the 

Appointments Committee for further study and report. 

 

#10790 

On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was 

voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, 

Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and 

James Walsh to refer A Measure Confirming the Mayor's Appointment of Alanna Toomey, to 
the position of Historical Commission Member, for term expiring September 13, 2025, to the 

Appointments Committee for further study and report. 

 

#10791 

On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was 

voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, 

Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and 

James Walsh to refer A Measure Confirming the Mayor's Appointment of Chris Pera, to the 
position of Historical Commission Member, for term expiring September 13, 2025, to the 

Appointments Committee for further study and report. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

ORDERS 

 

#10792 

Councillor Ronald Cormier informed the Council that an invoice was received at the closing 

of the fiscal year 2022 by the Gardner Airport for maintenance services. This requires a 9/10th 

vote of the City Council. 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 8 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 

Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh to Adopt the following Order: 

 

 

 AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF PRIOR YEAR OPERATING EXPENDITURE 

 

ORDERED: To authorize payment of prior year AIRPORT operating expenditure 

account for prior year, as follows: 

 

 FY2022 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE EXPENSE  $1,098.78 

 

#10793 

Councillor Ronald Cormier informed the Council that an invoice was received at the closing 

of fiscal year 2022, for services provided in repairing and maintenance of the City Hall main 

printer/copier. This requires a 9/10th vote of the City Council. 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 

Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh to Adopt the following Order: 

 

 AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF PRIOR YEAR OPERATING EXPENDITURE 

 

ORDERED: To authorize payment of prior year IT operating expenditure account for  

prior year, as follows: 

 

FY2022 PRINTER/COPIER EXPENSE  $32.01 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

#10794 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, seven (7) yeas, Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald 

Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and James 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 8 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Walsh; President Elizabeth Kazinskas abstained due to a conflict of interest; to Authorize the 

Acceptance of Donations: 

 

 ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS 

 PARK BANDSTAND GIFT 

 

 VOTED: That the City of Gardner is authorized to accept certain donations and 

gifts for use by the Parks Department, said acceptance in accordance with the 

provisions of Chapter 44, Section 53A ½ of the General Laws. 

 

#10795 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted on call of the rolls, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth 

Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh to Authorize the Declaration of Surplus 

for Purpose of Disposal of Land and Building: 

 

 DECLARING SURPLUS FOR PURPOSE OF DISPOSAL OF 

  LAND AND BUILDINGS AT 478 CHESTNUT STREET 

 

 VOTED: To declare surplus for the purpose of disposal, in accordance with 

prevailing General Laws, all land and buildings at 478 Chest Street, further identified 

on the City of Gardner Assessor’s Map  as R22/23/19, to establish as a minimum 

amount of $42,000.00 to be paid for any conveyance of said property, and to authorize 

the Mayor to convey said land, or part thereof, for such amount or larger amount, and 

upon such other terms as the Mayor shall consider proper in accordance with this 

Vote. 

 

#10796 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 

Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh to Authorize the following Measure of Acceptance of 

Donations and Gifts: 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS 

K-9 PROGRAM GIFT 

 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 8 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

VOTED: That the City of Gardner is authorized to accept certain donations 

and gifts for use by the Police Department K-9 Program, said acceptance in 

accordance with the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 53A ½ of the General 

Laws. 
 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 

 

#10797 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 

Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh to place on file A Notification from Fire Chief Gregory 
Lagoy Regarding Appointment Certificates Filed for Benjamin Tucker and Brendan Byrne. 
 
#10798 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Dana 

Heath, it was voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 

Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy 

Mack, and James Walsh to refer the following measure to the Planning Board for further 

study and report: A Petition Submitted by PrivateOversight, LLC, for an Ordinance to 
Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675, Entitled “Zoning,” per Zoning Act 
M.G.L. 40A. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

#10782 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted on call of the rolls, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas 

and Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 

Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh to Authorize the following Measure: 

 

 COUNCIL ON AGING DEPARTMET 

RECREATIONAL ACTIVITES 

REVOLVING FUND M.G.L. CH.44., S.53E ½ 

 

VOTED: To authorize and direct the City Treasurer to establish a revolving fund in 

accordance with M.G.L. Chapter 44, section 53E ½ for salaries and expenses relating 

to recreational activities at the Senior Center. 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 8 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Monies received from recreation fees at the Senior Center shall be credited to this 

fund. As per M.G.L., interest earned on this fund shall be treated as general fund 

revenue. 

The Council on Aging Department is authorized to expend from this fund and is 

limited to a total amount not to exceed any available balance of forty thousand dollars 

($40,000.00), whichever is less. 

The Council on Aging Department shall report annually to the Mayor and City 

Council the total amount of receipts and expenditures for the prior fiscal year and for 

the current fiscal year through December 31st , along with any other information that 

City Council may by vote require. 

In the event this fund is not reauthorized for the following fiscal year, or the city 

changes the purpose of the revolving fund, the balance in the fund shall revert to 

surplus revenue, unless City Council and the Mayor vote to transfer the funds to 

another revolving fund established in accordance with M.G.L. Chapter 44, section 

53E ½ 

 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE 

 
#10770 

Councillor James Walsh informed the Council that the Committee has not met on this 

appointment, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Frances LeMieux to the 
position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025. He requested more 

time. There being no objection, more time was granted. 

 

#10771 

Councillor James Walsh informed the Council that the Committee has not met on this 

appointment, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Paulette Burns to the 
position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025. He requested more 

time. There being no objection, more time was granted. 

 

#10772 

Councillor James Walsh informed the Council that the Committee has not met on this 

appointment, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Kristina Singer to the 
position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025.  He requested more 

time. There being no objection, more time was granted. 

 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 8 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10773 

Councillor James Walsh informed the Council that the Committee has not met on this 

appointment, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Kathleen Deal to the 
position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025.  He requested more 

time. There being no objection, more time was granted. 

 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 

#10784 

Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that they have not me on this item, An 
Application by Gardner Ten Pins, Inc., located at 560 W Broadway, for a Bowling Alley 
License. He requested more time. There being no objection, more time was granted. 

 

#10785 

Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that they have not me on this item, An 
Application by Gardner Thrift Store, for a License to deal in Second-hand Articles at 280 
Central Street. He requested more time. There being no objection, more time was granted. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMITTEE 

 

#10740 

Councillor James Walsh informed the Council that this item had a few things that were 

confusing and there was some miscommunication. Everything has now been resolved.  

 

On a motion made by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 

Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh to Grant the following Petition: A Petition by National 
Grid and Verizon New England, Inc., Keyes Road – To install beginning at a point 
approximately 700 feet southeast of the centerline of the intersection of West Street. 
Relocate Pole #2 across the street to accommodate for bridge construction and upgrade to a 
45 foot class 2.  
 

 

 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 8 of 8 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 

 

#10779 

On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Ronald 

Cormier, it was voted viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 

Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh to place on file A Notification from the Mayor 
Regarding the Fire Department Operations Audit. 
 
#10781 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas requested more time on An Act Relative to Establish a Special 
Act Charter Drafting Committee. There being no objection, more time was granted. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Councillor Dana Heath would like to invite everyone to attend the Fabulous Fall Festival this 

weekend.  

 

Councillor Judy Mack would like to thank all the donations received lately. 

 

Councillor James Walsh would like to thank the Fire Department for the Audit report and 

mention the plan to purchase a new ambulance with the AARPA funds. 

 

 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was voted 

viva voce, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald 

Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh 

to adjourn at 7:59 p.m. 
 

 

Accepted by the City Council:  



10865



10865



10865



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10866



10867



TOWN OF ASHBY AND CITY OF GARDNER 
MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT 

VETERAN SERVICES 
  
This Intermunicipal Agreement, made and entered into this _____ day of __________ 2022, 
pursuant to the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40, Section 4A, by and 
between the town of Ashby, a municipal corporation within the County of Middlesex and the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, acting by and through its Board of Selectmen, hereinafter 
referred to as "Ashby," and the City of Gardner, a municipal corporation within the County of 
Worcester and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, acting by and through its Mayor, 
hereinafter referred to as "Gardner" (collectively referred to as the "Municipalities"). 
 

WITNESSETH 
  

WHEREAS, the Municipalities have determined that they share a need for veteran 
services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Municipalities have determined that the sharing of the benefits 
and costs of those services would be beneficial to each Municipality, and 
 

WHEREAS, this Agreement shall provide for the terms, conditions and liabilities 
of the parties with respect to these services, including, but not limited to terms of 
cooperation and obligations of each Municipality relative to cost of shared human 
resources, training, facilities, and operating costs; and 
 

WHEREAS, the voters at Ashby Town Meeting authorized the Board of 
Selectmen and the Gardner City Council authorized the Mayor to enter into this 
agreement in accordance with the provisions of G.L.c. 40, Section 4A.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual benefits to be 
derived by the parties hereto, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The Ashby Town Administrator and the Gardner Mayor will be the Municipalities 
respective representatives to oversee the cooperative arrangement. The approval of 
the Ashby Board of Selectman and Gardner Mayor will be required to amend this 
Agreement. 
 

2. All the privileges and immunities from liability and exemptions from laws, by-
laws, ordinances and regulations that veteran services officers employed by any of 
the parties hereto have in their own jurisdictions shall be effective in the 
jurisdiction in which they are giving assistance unless otherwise prohibited by 
law.  
 

3. The shared veteran services officer shall have all of the authority under the 
applicable provisions of the Massachusetts General Laws as well as the by-laws of 

10867



Ashby and the City of Gardner city ordinances in which veteran services are being 
provided. 

 
4. Term. The term of this Agreement is for three (3) years from FY2023 to FY2025 

commencing on December 6, 2022 and ending on June 30, 2025 unless or until 
terminated by the parties hereto on written notice. Such notice shall be provided 
one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the end of the then current fiscal year and 
withdrawal from the agreement will be effective as of the last day of the 
succeeding fiscal year. In the event that Ashby fails to pay any invoice to Gardner 
in a timely manner, or in the event Ashby fails to approve a veteran services 
budget, as provided for herein and that is subject to appropriation by the Ashby 
Town Meetings, then Gardner may immediately suspend its services under this 
Agreement for non-performance. Upon receipt of the past due payments, together 
with adequate assurances of payment for future services, Gardner may commence 
performing its services again.  

 
5. Cost sharing. During the term of this Agreement, Ashby will bear the costs of the 

Veteran’s Service Officer according to the following fee schedules: 
a. Ashby: 

i. Fiscal Year 2023: $3,500.00 ($6,500 prorated) 
ii. Fiscal Year 2024: $6,700.00 

iii. Fiscal Year 2025: $6,900.00 
 
with said costs based upon an approved veteran service budget subject to 
appropriation by Town Meeting and appropriation by the Gardner City Council, 
which will provide for the complete cost of wages, maintenance of the Veterans’ 
Services Office, employee stipends, and supplies and training. Any 
modification(s) to this schedule must be agreed to in writing by each of the 
respective Town Select Boards and Gardner City Council and will take effect in 
the following fiscal year. 

 
6. Services and Office Community Hours.  Veterans’ Services to be provided as part 

of the intermunicipal agreement are outlined in Massachusetts General Law 
Chapter 115, the by-laws of Ashby, Gardner ordinances, and the job description of 
the Veteran Services Officer, incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Gardner, as the host municipality, shall provide office space and adequate support 
during designated office hours. Each municipality will allow the Veteran Services 
Officer to assist veterans and other eligible persons from each of the participating 
municipalities in this agreement during designated office hours to facilitate 
regional service delivery.  

 
7. Dispute Resolution.  In the event any disputes or questions arise between the 

parties as to the interpretation of the agreement or the satisfactory performance by 
any of the parties of the services and other responsibilities provided for in the 
contract, the parties first agree to try in good faith to settle the dispute through 

10867



negotiation, then try resorting to other dispute resolution procedures, before 
proceeding to litigation. 
 

8. Reports.  Gardner shall, upon request of Ashby, provide Ashby with reports on the 
services provided and annual reports of expenditures and revenues of all accounts 
necessary to provide a complete picture of the financial condition of the shared 
function. 

 
9. Notice.  Any and all notices, or other communications required or permitted under 

this Agreement, shall be in writing and delivered by hand or mailed postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, by registered or certified mail or by other 
reputable delivery service, to the Boards of Selectmen and the Gardner Mayor at 
the addresses set forth below or furnished from time to time in writing hereafter by 
one party to the other party. Any such notice or correspondence shall be deemed 
given when so delivery by hand, if so mailed, when deposited with the U.S. Postal 
Service or, if sent by private overnight or other delivery service, when deposited 
with such delivery service. 

 
Town Administrator 
Town of Ashby 
895 Main Street 
Ashby, MA 01431 
 
Mayor 
City of Gardner 
95 Pleasant Street 
Gardner, MA 01440 

 
10. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes any 

prior agreements or understandings, whether oral or in writing, between them. 
This Agreement may not be changed or modified except by a written instrument in 
accordance with the provisions above.  
 

11. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with 
the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the provisions of which shall 
not be deemed waived by any provision hereof, and the parties hereto submit to 
the jurisdiction of any of its appropriate courts for the adjudication of disputes 
arising out of this Agreement. 
 

12. If any provision of this Agreement is declared to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, 
then the parties shall be relieved of all obligations under that provision provided, 
however, that the remainder of the Agreement shall be enforced to the fullest 
extent permitted by law. 
 

In witness thereof, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the first date 
written above. 

10867



 
For the City of Gardner    

__________________________________ 
Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor  

 

For the Ashby Board of Selectmen 

___________________________________ 
Michael Bussell, Acting Town Administrator 

 

 
 

 

 

10867



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10871



10868a



10868a



10868b



10868b



10869a



10869a





XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



10869c



10869c



10869d



10869d

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



10869e



10869e

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



10869f



10869f



10869g



10869g

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



10869h



10869h

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



10869i



10869i

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



10869j



10869j



10869k



10869k



10869L



10869L

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



10869m



XXXXXXXXXXXXXXxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

10869m



10869n



XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

10869n



10869o



10869o



10870



10870

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



10872



10873



 
        

                    CCIITTYY  OOFF  GGAARRDDNNEERR  
                    MMAASSSSAACCHHUUSSEETTTTSS  0011444400--22663300  

 
                    OOFFFFIICCEE  OOFF  TTHHEE  

                CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK  
 
TTIITTII  SSIIRRIIPPHHAANN,,  CCiittyy  CClleerrkk  
JJOOHHNN  AA..  OOLLIIVVAARRII,,  AAsssstt..  CCiittyy  CClleerrkk  
FFAAIITTHH  GGLLOOVVEERR,,  AAsssstt..  CCiittyy  CClleerrkk                                                                                                                              
RRoooomm  112211,,  CCiittyy  HHaallll                                                                                                                                                                
TTeell    ((997788))  663300--44005588  
FFaaxx  ((997788))  663300--22558899    
                             
                                                                                                       
       December 15, 2022 
Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, President 
 And Members of the City Council 
City Hall 
95 Pleasant Street 
Gardner, MA  01440 
 
Re: Notice of Vacancy in Ward 3 Councillor Position 
 
Dear President Kazinskas and Members of the City Council: 
 
 Please be advised that the position of Ward 3 Councillor is vacant due to the resignation 
of Councillor Nathan R. Boudreau. 
 

Consequently, the provisions of Section 32 of the Charter of the City of Gardner requires 
the City Council appoint the person from the same ward who received the next highest vote total 
in the most recent municipal election to fill the vacancy for the unexpired term.  Councillor 
Boudreau ran unopposed in the 2021 election. 
 

Therefore, the City Council by majority vote, may elect a qualified resident of Ward 3 to 
fill the vacancy for the unexpired term under procedures determined by the Council. 

 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.   

 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
       TITI SIRIPHAN 

 City Clerk 
 
 
 

 

10874



 

December 13, 2022 

Gardner City Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas 
95 Pleasant Street 
Gardner, MA 01440 

RE: Ward 3 Councilor Nathan Boudreau Resignation 

President Kazinskas and Gardner City Councilors, 

As I have stated many times in the past, the job of Gardner City Councilor is one of the most fulfilling 
positions one can hold in local government. I love this community and have been honored to serve as 
Ward 3 City Councilor for the past nine years. I have long been honest with members of our community 
and myself that if and when my full-time professional duties interfered with my abilities to represent Ward 
3, I would do what is best for the interests of the Ward. I was recently appointed Hubbardston Town 
Administrator, a longtime professional goal of mine. After much thought, I have decided to resign as Ward 
3 Gardner City Councilor at the close of council business on December 19, 2022. 

It has been an honor to serve in this capacity, I feel I have offered a steady voice and an unprecedented 
level of constituent service to the residents of Ward 3, and I thank them all for working with me over the 
years. I would like to send a sincere note of thanks to past and present City Councilors, the administration 
of Mayor Mark Hawke, and the administration of Mayor Michael Nicholson, for their partnership and 
collegial spirit. I plan to stay involved and continue serving our City in other capacities.   

May glory forever shine on the City of Gardner! 

Sincerely, 

 
Nathan R. Boudreau 

10874



10855



10855



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10860



10863



10863



10863



10863



10856



10856



10864



10864



10858



10857



10857



10857



10861



10861




